Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No.  09-0759 MC



)

CONRAD V. POINDEXTER,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION
Conrad V. Poindexter violated 49 CFR § 396.11(a), and thereby § 307.400.1,
 four times when he failed to prepare the report required after each day’s work on March 4, 5, 6, and 13, 2008.
Procedure


On May 29, 2009, the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) filed a complaint to establish that Poindexter violated transportation safety laws.  On June 12, 2009, we served Poindexter by certified mail with our notice of complaint/notice of hearing and a copy of the complaint.  On September 18, 2009, the MHTC filed a motion for summary decision.  We gave Poindexter until October 2, 2009, to respond.  Poindexter did not respond to the complaint or to the motion for summary decision.


On August 20, 2009, the MHTC filed a motion to consolidate the instant case with Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission v. Motex Construction, LLC, Case No. 09-0758 MC (Motex).  We deny the motion as moot for the reasons stated in our order issued in Motex issued October 28, 2009.
Findings of Fact

1.
Motex Construction, LLC, is a motor carrier operating a terminal located within Jackson County in Kansas City, Missouri.
2.
On March 4, 5, 6, and 13, 2008, Motex Construction, LLC :

a.
owned a 1995 Ford truck, assigned Company Number 117 (“the Ford truck”), with a gross vehicle weight rating (“GVWR”) of 42,000 pounds, and
b.
employed Poindexter as a driver of the Ford truck on the trips described below.
3.
On March 4, 5, 6, and 13, 2008, Poindexter:

a.
 operated the Ford truck to transport dirt and rock from one location to another within Kansas City, Missouri, and

b.
failed to prepare a driver vehicle inspection report on the Ford truck at the completion of each day’s work.  
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Poindexter violated the law.


We may grant the MHTC's motion for summary decision if the MHTC establishes facts that entitle it to a favorable decision and Poindexter fails to genuinely dispute such facts.
  We find that the MHTC has established by clear and satisfactory evidence the violations alleged in its complaint.  We make our findings of fact and conclusions of law accordingly.


Section 307.400.1 provides: 

It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation. . . .

The MHTC has the authority to enforce “any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state[.]”


49 CFR § 390.5 provides the following definitions:
Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle--

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater; . . .
*   *   *

Driver means any person who operates any commercial motor vehicle.
*   *   *

Employer means any person engaged in a business affecting interstate commerce who owns or leases a commercial motor vehicle in connection with that business, or assigns employees to operate it, but such terms does not include the United States, any State, any political subdivision of a State, or an agency established under a compact between States approved by the Congress of the United States.
*   *   *

Motor carrier means a for-hire motor carrier or a private motor carrier.  The term includes a motor carrier's agents, officers and representatives as well as employees responsible for hiring, supervising, training, assigning, or dispatching of drivers and employees concerned with the installation, inspection, and maintenance of motor vehicle equipment and/or accessories. For purposes of subchapter B, this definition includes the terms employer, and exempt motor carrier.

Motex Construction, LLC, is a motor carrier and an employer, and Poindexter is a driver as defined above.  The Ford truck is a commercial vehicle because it has a GVWR of 10,000 pounds or more.  


49 CFR § 396.11(a) provides:
(a) Report required.

(1) Motor carriers.  Every motor carrier must require its drivers to report, and every driver must prepare a report in writing at the completion of each day's work on each vehicle operated.  The report must cover at least the following parts and accessories[.]
Poindexter violated 49 CFR § 396.11(a), and thereby § 307.400, four times when he failed to prepare the report required after each day’s work on March 4, 5, 6, and 13, 2008.  
We grant the motion for summary decision and cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on October 28, 2009.


________________________________



NIMROD T. CHAPEL, JR.   


Commissioner

	�Statutory references are to RSMo Supp. 2008, unless otherwise noted.


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4.  


	�Section 622.350.


	�1 CSR 15-3.446(5)(A).


	�Section 390.201, RSMo 2000.
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